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GRIP POLYMERS LIMETED

Directors’ Report to the Members,

Your Directors have pleasure to present the 24™ Annuai Report together with the Audited Accounts
for the year ended 31% March, 2017.

1.

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

Total income for the year is Rs.2,57 375/- (previous year Rs.7,27,692/-). Net loss after tax for the
year is Rs.1,38,59,915/- (Previous year of Rs.6,25,285/-). During the year, company has further
obtained loan of Rs.268 lakhs from the holding company GRP Lid, for the purpose of
investment in Gripsurya Recycling LLP. Interest on this loan has been provided during the year,
which is having a unit at Pithampur near Indore for waste rubber shredding and tyre retreading.

During the financial year 2016-17, the stake of the company in Gripsurya Recycling LLP,
increased from 50% to 99.97% as a result of acquisition of the majority share of the retiring
partner M/s, Shrisuryansh Rubber India Pvi. Ltd.

The turnover of this business during the year was Rs 6,66 85,673/ However due to refreading
business is stil under stabilization phase, this business has incurred net loss of Rs.1,10,97,870/-. -

DIVIDEND:

For conserving the financial resources, Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend for
the vear.

DIRECTOR:

in accordance \mth the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Rajendra V. Gandhi, retires by
rotation at the 24™ Annual General Mesting and being eligible offers herself for reappointment.

NUMBER OF BOCARD MEETINGS:
Company held five (8) board meetings during the financial year 2016-17.
DIRECTORS! RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board
hereby submit its responsibility statement :

(@) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as 1o give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the company for the year ended 31" March, 2017 and of the profit
and loss of the company for that period;

 {c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets
of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis, and
(&) the directors had devised proper systems {o ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
2.



6. AUDITORS :

In accordance with the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, every Company shall
appoint Statutory Auditors to hold office for term of 5 years at a time and such appointment is
subject to ratification by the Members every year in the annual general meeting. Before such
appointment is made and ratified, the written consent of the auditor to such appointment and
ratification, and a centificate from him or it that the appointment, if made, shall be in accordance with
the conditions as may be prescribed, shall be obtained from the auditor.

However, M/s. AB.Modi & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, have informed the
Company that they will not be seeking re-appointment as Statutory Auditors at the forthcoming 24"
Annual General Meeting.

M/s.D K P & Associates (Firm Regn. No.126305W), Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, a firm of long
standing have been identified for appointment as the Statutory Auditors of the Company.,

Being eligible for appointment under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, they have fumished
their consent to act as the Statutory Auditors, in terms of the second proviso to Section 139 of the
Act and also provided a certificate to the effect that their appoiniment, if made, shall be in
accordance with the canditions laid down and that they satisfy the criteria provided under Section
141 of the Act. The Board of Directors, at the meeting held on 20" May, 2017 has proposed the
appointment of M/s. B K P & Associates.

PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 '

&r. Particulars Amount (Rs)
No.
a. | Irade Investment
Investment in capital account of Gripsurya Recycling LLP 2,24,01,825
MNon-Trade Investment
b. | 5000 equity shares of Rs.2 each fully paid up held in Bank of 85,000
Baroda
Total 2,24 86,825

8. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the financial year, your company entered into related party transactions, which were on an
arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. There were no material fransactions with
any related party as defined under Section 188 of the Act read with the Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014. All related party transactions were approved by the Board of
Directors of your company.

The details of contracts and arrangement with related parties of your company far the financial year
ended 31 March, 2017 is given in Note No.18 1o the financia! statements of your company.
.3



9. ANNUAL RETURN :

The extract of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 is attached to this report.
(Annexure 1)

10. SUBSIDIARY :

Company has majority stake in entity namely, Gripsurya Recycling LLP, which is into business of
rubber scrap shredding and tyre re-treading. Statement containing salient features of the financial
statement of Gripsurya Recycling LLP in form AOC =1 (part A) is attached to this report.

(Annexure 2).

11. RISK MANAGEMENT

Taking into account, the nature and size of the business, the board considers that the elements of
risk threatening the Company's existence are very minimal. Therefore, the Company has not framed
any Risk Management Policy.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date : 29" May, 2017 Rajendra Gandhi
Place: Mumbai Chairperson

Regd. Office : 510, A Wing, Kohinoor City Commercial I, Kirol Road, Kura (W), Mumbai — 400 070.
T:+91 22 6708 2500/2600, F : + 91 22 6708 2599
CIN : U25200MH1993PLCOT4922



Form Ne. M&GT-9
EXTRACT OF ANMNUAL RETURN as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2017
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rute 12{1} of the
Companies {Manzgement and Administeation) Rules, 2014]

i, REGISTRATION AND CTHER DETAILS:

i} CItd
i} Registration Date

i) Mame of the Campany
iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company
v} Address of the Registered office and

contact delalls

vi) Whether lisled company (Yes/ Ne)
viiy Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar
and Transfer Agent, if any

= U25200MH1993PLC074922

- 0411171983

- Grip Polymers Litnited

:- Company having Share Capital.

- 510, & Wing, Kohinoor City Commercial - 1,
Kirol Road, Kutla (West), Mumbai 400 070.

- MNa

- NA

. PRINGIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
Alt the business activities conliibuting 10% or more of the lotal turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sr. No, Mame and Cescription of NIC Code of the Product % to total turnover of
main products ! services {service the company
1 Investment in joint venture 85899 100%
lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -
1 NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE COMPARY - GRP Limited,

Plot Mo, B, GIDC Estate, Ankleshwar — 393 002,
Gujarat, India.

CINIGLN - L25191GJ1974 PLCDO2555.
HOLDING f SUBSIDIARY / ASSQCIATE - Holding

% of shares held - 100 %

Applicable Section = section 2(47)

I¥. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
{i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category No. of Shares held at the No., of Shares held at the % Change
of beginning of the year {01.04.2016) end of the year {31.03.2017) during
Shareholders Demat | Physical Total %of Total | Demat | Physical Total %of Total the year
Shares Shares
A Fromoters
{1) Indian
g} Individual { HUF o o (] 0.00 1] 0 0 0.00 0.00
h} Central Govt o 0 o 0.00 0 0 o 0.00 0.00
) State Govt (s} 0 o o 0.90 (1] 0 0 0.00 0.00
j} Bedies Corporate o 50000 50000,  100.00 ] 50000 50000 400,00 0.00
k) Banks f £ o 0 o 0.00 O 0 ] 0.00 000
1y Any Giher.... 1] 0 o 0.00 o 0 [ 0.00 0.0G
Sub-totat (A} (1):- 0 60000 50000 100.0G [1] 50000 £0000 100.0¢ 0.00
{2} Foreign 0
a) NRis — Individuals U] 0] G 0.a0 o 0 t] 0,00 0.00
b} Other - Individuals Q 0 o 0.00 o 0 0 0.00 0.00
¢) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 ] 0.00 0.00
d) Banks /Fl 0 0 o 0,00 ] 0 o 0.00 0.00
a} Any Cther.... 0 0 g 0.00 0 0 ] 0.00 0.00
Sub-total (A) (2]:- 1] 0 1] 0 1] 0 [t} 0.00 1]
Total shareholding of
Promoter 1} 50000 50000 100.00 1] 50000 £0000 100.00 0.00
(A)= (A)(1) #AN2)

Annexure 1



|B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds 0 ] 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
b) Banks 7 Ft 0 0 0 000 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
¢} Ceniral Govt [+ 0 a} 0.00 o 0 Q Q.00 0.00
d) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0.00 o 0 0 0.00 0.00
&) Venture Capilal Funds ] 0 0 0.00 Q 0 4] 0.00 0.00
f) Insurance Companies i} 0 0 0.00 1] 0 0 0.00 0.00
g;Flls 0 0 4] 0.00 0 0 Q Q.00 0.00
h} Foreign Venture Capital

Funds o 0 0 0.00 ] 0 0 0.00 0.00
i} Others (specify) 1] 0 a 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Sub-total (BY1):- 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
2, Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Gorp.

i} Indian 0 ] 0 0.00 s} 0 0 0,00 0.00
iiy Overseas 0 0] 0 0.00 4] 0 LY 000 0.00
b) Individuals

ilindividual shareholders

hotding nominal share il 0 0 0.00 o 4] 0 0.00 0.00
capital upto Rs.1lakh

iijIndividual shareholders

holding neminal share

capital in excess of Rs 0 0 0 000 G 0 0 0.00 0.00
1lakh

) Others [specify) 0 0 0 0.00 Q 0 Q 0.00 0.00

I} Clearing Members 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 L] 0.00 0.00
iiy NRI's {OCB's 0 1] 0 .00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Sub-tatal (B)(2):~ [{] [1] 0 0.00 0 0 & 0.00 0.00
Total Pubiic Shareholding 0 [} i] 0.00 1} 0 0 0.00 0,00
(BI=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)

¢} Shares held by

Custodian for GDRs & 0 0 0 0.00 i} 0 ¢ 0.00 0.00
ADRs

Grand Tolal {A+B+C) 1} 50000 50000 100.00 0 50000 50000 160.00 0.00
{ii} Shareholding of Promoters

Shareholding at the beginning Shareholding at the end % change in
of the year {01.04.2016} of the year (31.03.2017) sharehatd-
ing during
Shareholder’s Name % total no of shares No, of % total no of shaves of the year
No. of shares of the Company  [shares the Company

1. GRP Limited 50000 100 50000 100
2. Rzjendra V Gandhi 0 Q 0 ]
3. Mayna R Gandhi 0 0 0 0 -
Total £0000 100 50000 400 -

{iii} Change in Promoters® Shareholding { please specify, if there

** Nane of the promoters hava pledgadiencumbered sharas during the staled peried.

iz no change)

Shareholding at the beginning of

Cumulative Shareholding during the

Name of Promoter the year vear
No. of | % of tofal shares of | Mo. of [ % of total shares of the
shares the company shares company

At the beginning of the year
(01.04.2016)

Date wise Increase! decrease in
Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increasel decrease (e.g. allotment!
transfer! bonus! sweat equity eic)

These is no change in the
shareholding of promoters
during the year

At the End of the year (31.03.2017)




{iv) Sharcholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders
{other than Diractors, Promoters and Hotders of GDRs and ADRs}):

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders

Name of Shareholder

Shareholding at the beginning of

the year

Cumulative Shareholding during the
year

No. of
shares

o of total shares of
the company

%, of tofal shares of the
company

No. of
shares

At the beginning of the year
{01.04.2018)

MIL

NIL

NIL

NIL MIEL

Date wise Increasef decrease in
Share holding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase/
decrease [e.q. allotment! transfer!
bonus! sweal equity etc):

At the End of the year [31.03.2017)

NIL

NEL

MIL

NIL NIL

v} Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel {KMP):

Shareholding at the beginning of

Cumulalive Shareholding during the

For Each of the Directors and KMP | Name of Directors f KMP the year year
No. of %5 of total shares of No. of % of total shares of the
shares the company shares campany
Al the beginning of the year 1)Rajendra V Ganld hi Nil
(041.04.2017) 2)Harsh R Gandha_ N!I
IiNayna R Gandhi Nil
Date wise Increasef decrease in
Share holding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.q. allotment! transfer/
bonus! sweat equity etc):
1)Rajendra \ Gandhi Mil
At the Eng of the year (31.02,.2017) [2)Harsh B Gandhi il
3jNayna R Gandhi Nil
V. INDEBRTEDNESS {Rs._InLacs)
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstandingiacerued but not due for payment
Secu.red Loans Unsecurad Loans | Deposits Total Indebtedness
excluding deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial
year (01.04.2016)
# Principal Amount 1] 14000000 ] 14000000
ii} Interast due but not paid 0 0 o 1]
iii} Interest accrued but not due 0 1220036 0 1220038
Total (l+ii+ii) 0 18220036 0 15220036
Change in Indabtedness during the financial year
+ Addilion 0 29366373 0 29386373
+ Reduction 0 0 0.00 0
Net Change 0 0 0.00 0
Indebtedness atthe end of the financial year
{31.03.2017)
iy Principal Amount 0 40800000 0 40800000
i} Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
iif) nterest accnied but not dus 0.00 3766409 0 3756409
Total {i+il+iii} 0 44586409 [} 44586409




WI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Company has not paid any remuneration to any of the direetors of the company during the finanegial year 2H6-17. The company does not have
any Key Managerial Personnel as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year 2018-17.

Vil PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT! COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Section of .
T the Breif Details of Penalty / |\ o rity (RD/NGLTS | Appeal Made, if any
ype Companie | Description | [ unishment/ Court) (Give details)
Compounding
5 Act

A Company
Penaity Mil
Punishment il
Compounding il

B Directors
Penalty Mil
Punishment Wil
Compounding Nil

C Other Officers in Default

Penaity Nil
Punishmant il
Compounding il




Annexure 2

Fom AOC-|

(Pursuantto first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rufes, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaties

Part “A” : Subsidiaries

11 Sr. No. 1
2 Name of the subsidiary Gripsurya Recycling LLP
3 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different Nat Applicable
from the holding cormpany's reporting period
4 Reporting currency and exchange rate as on the last date of Not Appticable
the relevant financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries
5 Share capital Rs. 2,24,08,373/-
& Reserves and surpius Rs. 15,00,000+-
7 Total assets (excluding investiments) _ Rs. 5,18,59,532/-
8 Total liabilities Rs. 2,79,51,161/
9 Investmenis . -
10 Turnover Rs.6,67 53679/
11 Profit / (Loss) before taxation Rs. {1,06,39 630/)
12 Provision for taxation Rs. 4,08,240/-
13 Profit / {Loss) after taxation Rs. {1,10,97,870/-)
14 Proposed Dividend Nil :
15 | % of shareholding 99.97% |
Notes : The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement : i
i Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations Nil
2 Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold Nil !
during the year - o |
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Grip Polymers Limited
Place : Mumbai Rajendra Gandhi

Date : 29" May, 2017 Chairperson




A. B, MODI & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

T-1, 6th floor,Sunbeam Chamber, 7, Vithaldas Thackersy Marg, New Marine lines, Mumbai 400020

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Grip Polymers Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

1.

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Grip Polymers
Limited (*the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31% March 2017, the
statement of profit and loss and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatery information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

2.

Auditor’s Respansibility

3.

5.

6.

The Company’s Board of Direciors is responsible for the matiers stated in Section
13445} of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and
presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies {Accounts] Rules, 2014. This responsibility alse inciudes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting pelicies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

A

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements
based on our audit,

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit repert under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143{10] of the Act and other applicable authortative pronouncements issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and pronouncements
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to ehtain audit evidence about the amounts
and the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the




auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstaternent of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

7.
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.
Opinion
8. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according te the explanations

piven to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required
by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India,

a) In the case of the Balance Sheet , of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31st March 2017,

b) In case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss for the year ended on that
date; and

<} In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

9,

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the
Act{“the Order”) and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the
Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure “A” a statement -on the matiers
specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.f

10. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of cur audit. .

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those bocks;

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalene financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31
March 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directers is



disqualified as on 31st March 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over the financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in Annexure “B”.

(g} With respect to the -other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of thé Comparies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief and information and
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has no pending litigations as at March 31, 2017.

ii. The Company has not entered into any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts.

iii. The provision relating to the Investor Education and Protection Fund are not
applicable since there was no unclaimed dividend amount during the year.

iv. The Company has provided requisite disclosures in the standalone financial
statements as to holding as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the
period from 8th November,2016 to 30th December,2016 on the basis of
information available with the Company. Based on audit procedure and relying
on management's representation, we report that disclosures are in accordance
with the books of accounts maintained by the Company and as produced to us
by the Management.- Refer Note 12 of Notes to Financial Statements.

For A. B. Modi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 106473W

A

Rajesh S Shah

Partner

Membership number: 017844
Mumbai: 29th May, 2017



A. B. MODI & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

T-1, 6th floor,Sunbeamn Chamber, 7, Vithaldas Thackersy Marg, New Marine lines, Mumbai 400020
Annexure -A to the Auditors’ Report

Annexure referred to an Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Grip Polymers Limited on Standalone financial statements for the year ended
31st March, 2017.

We report that:

(i) The company is not having any tangible fixed assets, hence clauses 3{i)(a) & 3(i)(b) of the
Companies {Auditors’ Report) Order 2016 are not applicable to the company for current
financial year.

L]
(i) There was no inventory during the year hence clauses 3{ii)(a), 3(ii)(b) and 3(iii)(c) of the
Companies [Auditors’ Report}) Order 2016 are not applicable to the company for current
financial year.

(i) The Company has granted unsecured a loan to Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) in which
it is a partner and holding maximum share and which is covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act.

a) In respect of the aforesaid loan, the terms and conditions under which such loan is
granted are prejudicial to the Company’s interest considering the said loan is interest
free and net worth of the LLP

b) In respect of the aforesaid loan, as per the schedule of repayment produced before
us,no principal amount is being due in the ¢urrent financial year. The said loan is
interest free loan.

¢) In respect of the aforesaid loan, there is no amount which is overdue for more than
ninety days.

{iv} In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of loans and investments made. We are informed that the Company has
not provided any security or any guarantees during the year.

(v) The company has not accepted any deposits from the public with m the meaning of
sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and rules framed there under to the extent notiied.
We are informed that no order has been passed by the Company Law Beoard or National
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal.

(vi) We have been informed that the company is not covered under the rules made by the
Central Government of India in respect of the maintenance of cost records as has been
specified under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act. We have, therefore, not
examined the records with a view to deterinine whether they are accurate or complete.



(vi) {a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the

{viii)

(ix)

(%)

(xd)

(o]

(aciv)

Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depoesiting the
undisputed statutory dues, including Income Tax, Service Tax and other material
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no dues cuistanding in respect of income tax,
sales- tax, including value added tax, duty of customs and duty of excise as at
31st March 2017 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our audit
procedures, the Company has no borrowings from financial institfution or bank or
Government or by way of debentures hence clause 3(viil) of the Companies {Auditors’
Report} Order 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our audit
procedures, the Company has not raised any initial public officer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loan during the year, hence the provision of
clause 3(ix} of the Companies {Auditors Report) Order 2013 is not applicable to the
company.

On our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in accordance
with generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we have not noticed or reported any fraud by the Company or
any fraud on the company by its officer or employees.
]
According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination
of the records of the company, the company has not paid/ provided managerial
remuneration during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3{xi) of the Companies (Auditors
Report) Order 2013 is not applicable to the company

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(di) of the Companies
(Auditors Report] Order 2013 is not applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the act where applicable and details of such
transactons have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the
Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order 2016 are not applicable to the Company.




(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company,the company has not entered into non-cash
transactions with directors or person connected with them. Accordingly paragraph 3{xv)
of the Companies {Auditors’ Report) Order 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Companies (Auditors’ Report)
Order 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

For A. B. Modi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number; 106473W

Rajesh S Shah

Partner

Membership number; 017844
Murmbai: 20th May, 2017



A. B. MODI & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
T-1, 6th floor,Sunbeamn Chamber, 7, Vithaldas Thackersy Marg, New Marine lines, Mumbai 400620

Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause {i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) '

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Grip Polymers
Limited {“the Company”) as of 313t March 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Finaneial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining iternal financial
controls based on the internal contrel over financial reporfing criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institite of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence {o
company’s policies, the safeguarding of ifs assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsihility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls ever Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adeguate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls cperated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit invelves performing procedures to obtain andit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
staternents, whether due to fraud or ervor.




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial ¢controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordence with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internmal financial control over financial reperting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; {2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Becanse of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or frand may occur and not he detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting te future periods are
-subject to the risk that the intemal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate hecause of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate intermal financial
conirols system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31stMarch 2017, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For A. B. Madi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 106473W

Rajesh 8 Shah

Partner

Membership number: $17844
Mumbai: 29th May, 2017



GRIP POLYMERS LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315ST MARCH, 2017

As at As at
Note 31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Amount in¥ Amount In ¥
Equity and Liabilities
Shareholders' funds
Share capital 2 5,00,000 5,000,000
Reserves and surplus 3 {1,21,27,623) 17,32,292
(1,16,27,623) 22,32,292
Non-current Liabilities
Long tarm Borrowings 4 4,08,00,000 1,40,00,000
4,08,00,000 1,40,00,000
Current Liabilities
Trade payables 5 14,375 16,713
Cther current: liabilities 6 38,76,524 12,54,940
Short term provisions 7 - 6,947
38,950,899 12,78,600
Total Equity & Liabilities 3,30,63,276 1,75,10,892
Assets
Non-current assets
Fixad assets
- Intangible assets 8 9,759,023 -
Nan current investments ] 2,24,86,325 1,45,63,121
Long term loans and advances 10 £8,00,000 -
Other Non Current Assets 11 1,56,809 1,54,341
3,04,18,657 1,47,17,462
Current Assets
Cash and Bank Balance 1z 25,44,226 27,43,959
Short term loans and advances 13 44 864 49,471
Other current assets 14 55,529 -
26,44,619 27,93,430
Total Assets 3,30,63,276 1,75,10,892
1-24

Significant Accounting pelicies and Notes on Financial Statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our Report of even date

For A. B. Modi & Associates
Charterad Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration no. 106473W

fiajesh 5. Shah
Partner
Membership no. 017844

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29th May, 2017

For and on behalf of the Board of Diractors

Rajendra V Gandhi
Chairperson

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29th May, 2017




GRIP POLYMERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017

Year ended Year ended
MNaote 31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Amountin¥ AmountIn¥
Revenue ;
Qther income 15 2,57,375 7,27,692
Total revenue 2,527,375 7,27,692
Expenses : _
Financa costs 16 28,51,526 12,55,892
Qther expenses 17 1,12,25,845 65,547
Total expenses 1,40,77,371 13,21,439
Profit hefore tax {1,38,19,996) (5,93,747)
Tax expense
Current tax 40,100 52,000
{Excess) / short provision of earlier years {181} {20,462)
Praofit / {Loss) for the period (1,38,59,915}) {6,25,285})
Earnings per equity share of face value of ¥ 10/- each fully paid up 20
{1} Basic (277.20) {12.51)
{2} Dituted (277.20) {12.51)
Significant Accounting_policies and Notes on Financial Statements 1-24

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our Report of even date

For A. B. Modi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
1CAI Firm Registration no. 106473wW

Rajesh 5. Shah
Partner
Membership no. 017844

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29th May, 2017

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajendra V Gandhi
Chairperson

Place : Mumbal
Date : 29th May, 2017




GRIP POLYMERS LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2017 Amount inT
Year ended Year ended
31-03-2017 31-03-2016
A Cash flow from Qperating activities
Met profit before tax and extra ordinary items (1,38,19,995) (5,93,747)
Adjustments for
- Share of (profit) / less in LLP {previously Jointly controlled entity) 1,10,92,274 (4,78,121)
- Interest {Met) 2594151 10,22,311
- Interest on income Tax 5,795 -
- Dividend Income - {16,000]
1,36,92,220 5,28,200
Operating Profit before working capital changes {1,22.777} 65,547}
Adjustments for
- {increase)/Decrease in Trade and other receivables 1,726 -
- Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payable 52,372 26,202
60,598 26,202
Cash generated from operaticns (67,179} (39,345}
Direct tanes paid {55,730} 49,263}
Net cash from operating activities [1,22,959} [BR,608)
B Cash flow frem Investing activities
- Interest received 2,01,846 2,33,571
- Dividend Income - 16,000
- Fixed Deposits in Bank with Maturity period of more than 3 months 3,53,774 53,970
- Investment in LLP {1,20,15,577) {94,08,000}
- Lerany to LLP in which company has mafor stake (68.00,000) -
- Payment of Goodwiil for acquiring share in LLP {9,75,023) -
Net cash used in investing activities {2,62,35,380) (91,04,459)
€ Cash flow from financing activities
- Loans borrowed (Net of rapayment] 2,68,00,000 94,08,000
- Interest pafd {2,85,153) (1,25,590)
Net eash used in financing activities 2,65,14,847 92,82,410
Net increase / {Decrasse) in cash and cash equivalents 1,56,509 89,343
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,232,216 32,873
Cash and cash equivalents at the closing of the period 2, 78,715 1,22,216
Cash and cash equivalents includas:
- Cash & Bank Balance 25,44,226 27,43,059
Less: Dapasit with Maturity period of mere than 3 months (22,65,501) [26,21,743)
2,78,725 1,232,316

Notes:
(3} Figures in brackets are ouiflows.

i) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method" as set out in the Accounting Standard-3 on Cash Flow Statement, prescribed

under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013,
{iii}) Previous year’s figures have been re-grouped wherever necessary te conform te current year's classification.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financlal statements.
As per our Report of even date

For &, B. Wodi & Assocates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration no. 106473W

Rajendra V Gandhi
Rajesh 5. Shah Chairperson
Fartner
Membership na. 017844
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date : 29th May, 2017 Date : 26th May, 2017




GRIP POLYMERS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2017 Amount in

1 Significant Accounting Policies:

{A) Basis of accounting :
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical cost convention on the

accrnal basls, GAAP comprises mandatory Accounting Standards as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 [‘Act'} read with Rule 7 of the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the provislons of the Act [to the extent natified). Accounting poiicies have been consistently applied by the company and
are consistent with thosa used in the previous year except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard required a change in the accounting policy bither to in use,

{B} Accounting Estimates :
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles [GAAP) reguires managerment to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities and the disclosure of contingent [fabilities on the date of the financlal statements. Actual
rasults could differ from those estimates. Any difference batwesn tha actual result and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known f
materialised. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods,

{€) Fixed Assets
Intangible Assets
Intangible Asset acquired separately is measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initiai recognition, intangible asset Is carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accurnulated impairment losses if any.

{D} Investments ;
investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than ene year from the date on which such investments are made, are classified as

current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments.
Long term investments are catried at cost. However provizien for diminution is made to recognise a decline, ather than temporary, in the value of the

investments, such reduction being daetermined and made for each investment individually. Current investments are valued at cost or market value whichever is
lower,

Investment in Licndted Liabilily Partnership:
Investment in Limited Lishility Partnarship fiem is valued 3¢ cost. Profit / (loss) if any is racognised at the year end on finalisation of accounts of the LLP

{E] Taxes:
Provision for tax is made for both current and deferred taxes. Provisions for current income tax is made at current tax rates based on assessable income. The

Company provides for deferrad tax baged an the tax effect of timing difference resulting from the recognition of itermns in the financial statement and in estimating
it's current tax provision. Deferred tax assels are recognised if there is a reasonable certainty of realisation. The effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is
recoghised in the Profit & Loss Account in the period in which it has been enacted,

{F) Income Recognition :
(i} Interest income |s recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.
(i} Dividend income s recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.
{iii] Share of profits / iasses in LLP is aceounted for, once the amount of the share of profit floss is ascertained and credited /debited to the Company's account in the

hooks of the LLP firm,

{G) Provisions, Contingent Liabilitles and Contingent Assets
Provisions involved substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is

probable that there will be an outflow of resources, Contingent Liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are neither
recognfsed nor disclesed in the financiai statements.

{H} Earning per Share
The company reports basic and diluted earning per share {EP3) in accordance with the Accounting Standard specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act

read with Rute 7 of the Companies [Accounts] Rules, 2014, The Basic EPS has been computed by dividing the income available to equity sharehoiders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the accounting year. The diluted EPS has been computed using the weighted average number of
equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares sutstanding during the end of the year.

{1} Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivslents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with an original maturity of

thrae months or less,

) As at As at
2 Share Capital: 31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Authorized:
50,000 {March 31, 2016: 50,000} equity shares of T 10 each 500,000 5,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
50,000 (March 31, 2016: 50,000) equity shares of T 10 each fully paid-up 5,000,000 5,00,000
5,00,000 5,00,000

{a} Rights, prefarences and restrictions attached to shares
The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of T 10/~ Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of fiquidation of 1the Company, the holders of the equity shares of the Company will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts In propertion to their shareholding.




GRIP POLYMERS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2017 Amount in

{b} The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016, is set out below;
Equity Shares:

As at Asat
31-93-2017 31-03-2016

At the beginning

- Number of shares 50,000 50,000

- Amount 5.00,000 5,00,00C
At the and

- Number of shares 50,000 50,000

- Amount 5,00.000 500,000

{t) Petalis of shares held by sharehelders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shaves in the company

As at 31-03-2017 As at 31-03-2016
. Mo. of Sharas % of Holding Mo. of Shares 9% af Holdinp
Holding company
GRP Limited 50,000 100000 55,000 100.00%
As at Asat

Reserves and Surplus: 31.02.2017 21.03.9016

General Reserve
Balance as per last Balance sheet 841,711 841,711

Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss

Baiance as at beginning of the year 2,90,581 15,15,366

Frofit { {Loss} for the year ) {1,38,52,915) {6,25,285)

Balance as at end of the year 1,29,69,334) 8,90,581

Total Reserves and Surplus (1,21,27,623) 17,32,252
As at As at

Long Term Borrowings: 31.03-2017 31-03-2016

Long Term borrowing

Unsecured Loan
From GRP Ltd. [Holding Company) 4,08,00,000 1,40,00,000
Tatal Long Term Barrowlings 4,08,00,000 1,40,00,000

The lzan carry interest at the raie of 10% p.a. The terms of loan is for 3 years from the date of disbursement which will be repaid as under
Financial Year Amount

FY 2013-19 54,08,000
FY 201%-20 2,68,00,000
Ff 2020-21 45,92,000
As at As at
Trade Payables: 31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Trade payables 14,375 16,713
Tatal Trade Payables 14,375 16,713
Az at Az at

Other Current Liabilities: 1.03-2017 31.03-016

Statutory dues 90,115 34,904
Interest Accrued 37,86,409 ~12,20,036
Total Other Current Lizbilities 33,76,524 12,54,340
As at As at
Shart Term Provisions: 31032017 41052016
Provision for Taxations - 6,947
Todal Short Term Provisions - 6,247
Net of advance tax Rs 43,219/ [March 31, 2016 : Rs 1,31,053/-)
Fixed Assets:
Gross Black Depreciation & Amortisation Net Book Value
Particulars A at Additions Disposal hsat Asat far the periad Disposal Asal fsat Asat
D1-04.2018 31032017 | M1-04-2006 31-83-2017 3103207 31-033-2016
Intangible Assets
Own Assets :
Good will - 9,715,023 - 9,75,023 - - - - 9,75.023 -
Total : - 9,75,023 - 9,75,023 s . - - 4,75,023 -
Previous Year: - - . . . . . - L. .
Tatal Fixed Assets [Nath 9,75,023 -

Goodwill arises upoh the acquisition of jointly controlled interest of the IV Partner of LLP. Goodwill represents the excass of the eost of the arquisition aver the
Group's inferast In the net fair value of the identifiabie assets and liabilities.




GRIP POLYMERS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2017 Amount in T
As at Asal
9 Non-current Investments: 31 632047 21089046
Long term investments (valued at cost uniess stated otherwise)
a) Long Teym- Trade Investment
tnvestment in Capital account of Limited Liability Partnesship
- Gripsurya Recycling LLP 2,24,01,825 1,44,78,121
b} tong Term Non Trade Investment
fnvestment in Equity Share [Quoted)
5.000 equity shares of T 2 /- each fuliy paid up held in Bank of Barcda
{Market Value T 8,564,750/ (March 31, 2016 : T 7,35,500/-)} 85,000 25,000
Total Non-curyent Investment 2,24,8G,825 1,45,63,121

Investment in Capitat account of Limited Liability Partnesship
Partners details and their profit sharing ratio and capital aecount

As at 31-03-2017

As at 31-03-2018

ProfitfLoss Capital Profit/Loss Capital
Name of the Partnets sharing ratioc  account sharing ratio account
Grip Polymers Limited - The Company 99.970% 2,24,01,825 S0% 1,44,78,121
Shrisuryansh Rubber India Private Limited 0.000% - 50% 1,40,13,121
Hamant Kaul 0.015% 3,274 0% -
Ganesh Ghangurde 0.015% 3,274 0% -
As at Asat
10 Long Term Loans and Advances: 34.03-2017 21092018
Laan te Gripsurya Recycling LLP* 68,000,000 -
Total Long Term Loans and Advances. 63,00,00¢ .
* LI.P ity which company is holding majority stake
As at As at
11 Other Non-Current Assets: 31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Fisied Deposit accounts with Bank [Maturity mors than 12 months) 1,556,809 1,54,341
Tatal Other Non-Current Assets 1,556,809 154,341
Notes:
Fixed Deposit with Bank include deposit of ¥ 28,586/~ (March 31, 2016 : T 26,719/} lien with the Maharashira Value Added Tax Departmeant.
As at Asat
12 Cash and Bank Balances: 11.03.3017 31032016
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balance with banks
- In current accounts 2,713,916 1,17,117
Cashin hand 4 809 E,059
2,718,725 1,212,216
Other Bank Balances
- In Fixed Deposit aceounts (Maturity mare than 3 months but less than 12 months) 23,865,501 26,21.743
Total Cash and Bank Balances 25,44 226 27,443,959

Disclosure on Specified Bank Notes (SBNs)

As required by the MCA vide notification no. GSR 308(E) dated 3Gth March, 2017, the details of Sparified Bank Notes {SBMs) and ather denomination notes held &
transacted during the period from 8th November, 2016 to 30th December, 2016 is given below,

Specified

Bank Other
n denomination Total
Notes notes
[SBN}
Closing cash In hand as on 08,11.2016 4,000 699 4,659
[+) Permittad receipts - 5,000 5,000
[-¥ Permitted payments - 820 3:1¢]
(-} Amount deposited in Banks 4,000 - 4,000
Closing cash jn hand as on 30.12.2016 - 4,809 4,809
As at As at
12 Short Term Loans and Advances: $1-03-2017 31-03-2016
Advances recoverable in cash or In kind 41,45 49471
Advanca Income-tax {Met of provisions T 40,10G/- . March 31, 2016 : T 1,38,000/-} 3,119 -
Total Short Term Loans and Advances 44,864 43,471
As at As at
14 Other Current Assets: 31.03-2017 31-02-2018
Accrved income 55,529 -
‘Tatal Other Current Assets 55,529 -




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2017

GRIP POLYMERS LIMITED

Amountin¥

Year ended Year ended
15 Other Income: 31.03.2017 31032016
Interest received 2,57,375 2,33,571
Dividend Income - 16,000
Share of Profit in LLP {Majority controlled entity) 4,78,121
Total Other Income 257,375 7,27,692
. Year ended Year ended
16 Finance Cost: 34032017 31032015
Interest on Dther Loans 28,51,526 12,558,892
Total Finance Cost 28,51,526 12,55,892
Year ended Year ended
17 Other Expenses: 31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Administration 8 Cther Expanses
Bank charges 27,125 599
Telephone expenses 27,300 23,764
Payment to Auditors:
Audit fee 8,625 2,588
- Tayatian mattars 5,750 5,725
Other Expenses 58,977 25,871
Share af Loss in LLP {Majority controlled entity) 1,10,92,274 -
Interest on income tax 5,795 1000
Total Other Expenses 1,12,25,845 65,547
18 Related Parties Disclosure:
{A) Names of the ralated parties :
{i} Parties where control exists :
Holding Campany H GRP Limited
{100% of total shareholdings held by the company)
Subsidiary LLP In which the company has majority Gripsurya Recycling LLP
stake (99.97% of total stake held by the company)
{fi} Directors of the company :-
- Key Management Persannel Rajendra V. Gandhi, Chalrperson
Nayna f. Gandhi , Director
Harsh R, Gandhi , Director
Year ended Year ended
31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Summary of transactions with related parties in the ordinary course of business
A} Loan Payable
GRP Limited 4,08,00,000 1,40,00,000
B} Investmentin capital account of LLP
Gripsurya Recycling LLP
Capital contribution 3,34,94,008 1,40,00,000
Share of profit / (foss) (1,16,92,274} 4,78,121
€] Interest Expenses
GRP Limited 28,51,526 12,55,892

19

Jointly controlled entity:

Cempany investment in a jointly controlled entity

Mame of the jointly controlled entity

Country of
Incorporation

Propartion of ownership Interest as
on 31-03-2016

Gripsurya Recycling LLP

India

50%

The company's share of each of the assets, squity & liabilities, income and expenses in the joint venture, based an the audited financial statements are as follows:

| Assets
Non-current Assets
) Fixed Assets
i} Tangible Assets
i) Capital WIP
b) Long term loans and advances
¢} Other non current assets

Current Assets
a) lnventories
b} Trade receivabrles
¢} Cash & Bank Bal
d) Short term loans and advances
e} Other Current Assets

Year anded
31-03-2016

Year anded
31-03-2017

- 1,91,76,651
- 21,347
- 6,76,225
- 18,829

- 45,59 951
- 5,44,105
. 1,15,394
- 2,96,800
- 2,209,500




GRIP POLYMERS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2017 Amount in T
Il Liabilities
Mon-current Liabilities
a) Long tarm borrowings - 53,590,625
Current Liahbifities
a) Short term borrewings - 19,322,079
b} Trade payables - 33,668,509
c) Other current liahilities - 4,71,368
il Income
a) Revenue from operations - 3,28,41,353
b} Other income - 1,822
IV Expenses
Cost of materlals consumed - 3,06,14,549
Changes In inventorias of finishad goods, work-in-prograss and stock-in-trade - {44,21,269)
Employee henefits expenses - 19,57,673
Finance costs - 400,507
Depreciation and amortization expenses - 17,898,318
QOther expenses - 20,06,191

VY Share of Contingent Liabilities - -
{Guarantee given if any)

Note = The company is a partner in Gripsurya Recycling LLP in which it was having 50% stake. From 06-Jul-2015 it has been increased to 99.97% by acquiring majority interest of Jv
partner for a consideration amounting to T 1,49,91,000/-. The differenca hetwaen the cost of investment in the LLP & the company's share of net assets at the time of acquisition of
stake in jointly controlled entity is recognised on the basis of unaudited financial statements for the said peried as Goodwill. Goodwill asising on acquisition of stake is disclesed under
fined assets and is not amortised but will be tested for Impairment annually.

20 Earnings per Share:

Year ended Year ended
31-03-2017 31-03-2016

Net Profit after tax for the year {1,38,60,096) {6,45,747)
- Ewcess Provision for tax for garlier years [181) (20,462}
- Net Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders . [1,28,59,915) (6,25,285)
« Number of equity shares of T 10/- each, 50,000 50,000
- Earnings per share - Basic {277,200 [12.51)

- Earnings per share -Diluted (277.20) [12.51)

n

Disclosure as per Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013:

22

3

24

The details of loans, guarantees and investments under Section 196 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meztings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are as follows:

(i Detaiis of invesiment made are given in Mote 9.

{ii} Details of loans given by the Company are as follows:

Name of the Entity Relationship As at 31-03-2017 As at 31-03-2016
Gripsurya Recycling LLP Subsidiary LLP 68,00,M00 -

(i) There are no guarantees issued by your Company in accordance with section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read withruies issued thareunder,

In the opirtion of the Board, the current assets, loan and advances are approximatety of the value stated, if realised, in the ordinary course of the business. The provisien for all known
Jiabilities is adequate and notin excass of the amount reasonably necessary.

Segment reporting as deflned In Accounting Standard 17 is not applicable.

Figure of the previous year have been re-arranged or re-grouped wherever necessary to make them comparable with that of the current year.

The accempanying notas are an integral part of the financial statemants.
As per our Report of even date

For A. B. Modi & Assaclates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAd Firm Registration no. 106473W

Rajendra ¥ Gandhi
Rajesh 5, Shah Chairperson
Partner
Membership no, 017844
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date : 29th May, 2017 Date ; 29th May, 2017




A. B. MODI & ASSOCIATES
" CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
T-1, 6th floor,Sunbeam Chamber, 7, Vithaldas Thackersy Marg, New Marine lines, Mumbai 400020

Independent Auditors’ Report on Consolidated Financial Statements
To the Members of Grip Polymers Limited
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying consclidated financial statements of Grip Polymers
Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary LLP in which it is a partner and hold
majority share (collectively referred to as “the Company” or “the Group”), comprising of
the consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2017, the consolidated statement of
profit and loss, the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory informatien
prepared based on the relevant records (hereinafter referred to as “the conseolidated
financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act,
2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consclidated
financial position, consoclidated financial performance and consoclidated cash flows of the
Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts] Rules, 2014. The Board of Directors of the Company are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financiat
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Anditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinioen on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the
provisions of the Act and the rules made there under including the accounting and
auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report.

4. We conducted our audit of the consoclidated financial statement in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act and other applicable
authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those standards and pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

5. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence abeout the amounts and
the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend



on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding
Company’s preparation of the consoclidated financial staternents that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting pelicies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of
Directors, as well as evaluating the owverall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

6. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in sub paragraph 8 of the Other
Matters paragraph below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Opinion
7. In our opinion and to the hest of our information and according to the expianations

given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required
by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generatly accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of
the Group, as at March 31, 2017, and their consolidated profit and their consoclidated
cash flows for the year ended on that date,

Other Matter

8.

We did not audit the financial statement of a LLP in which wholly owned subsidiary
company is having majority share, whose financial statements reflect total assets of
R=.518.60 lakhs and net assets of Rs.239.08 lakhs as at 31st March, 2017, total
revenues of Rs.667.54 lakhs and net loss Rs$.110.98 lakhs for the year ended on that
date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements These financial statement
has been audited by other auditors whose report have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this LLP in which Company
is holding majority share is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Qur Opinicn is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

9.

As required by sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act, we report, to the extent

applicable, that:

()

(b)

()

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

In our apinion, proper books of account as required by law maintained by the Company,
[ts subsidiary included in the group and joint venture incorperated in India including
relevant records relating te¢ preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books
and records of the Company.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained by the Company and its subsidiary LLP



including relevant records record relating to the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March3l, 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company none of the directors of the Holding company is disqualified as on
March 31, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of sub-section 2 of Section
164 of the Act.

(i  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Holding Company, which are company incorporated in India and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”; and

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Group has no pending litigations as at March 31, 2017,

ii. The Group did not have any material foresecable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

iii. The provision relating tc the Investor Education and Protection Fund are not
applicable since there was no unclaimed dividend amount during the year.

iv. The Company has provided requisite disclosures in the standalone financial
statements as to holding as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the
period from 8th November, 2016 tc 30th December, 2016 on the basis of
infermationn available with the Company. Based on audit procedure and relying on
management’s representation, we report that disclosures are in accordance with
the bocks of accounts maintained by the Company and as produced to us by the
Management. - Refer Note 15 of Notes to Financial Statements.

.For A. B. Modi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 106473W

Rajesh 5 Shah

Partner

Membership number: 017844
Mumbai: 29t May, 2017



A. B. MODI & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

T-1 , 6th floor,Sunbeam Chamber, 7, Vithaldas Thackersy Marg, New Marine lines, Mumbai 400020

Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report on Consolidated Financial Statements

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”}

1.

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as
of and for the year ended 31lst March 2017, we have audited the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of Grip Polymers Limited (“the Holding Company”).
However subsidiary being LLP the provisions of internal financial control are not
applicable and hence same is not considered for this report.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2,

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company, are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intermal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Regponsibility

3.

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10} of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
agsurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls systern over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.



5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6. A company's internal financial contrel over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i} pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (i) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded asg necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (jiii) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Finaneial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial conirols over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control aver financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Holding Company have, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31stMarch 2017, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For A. B. Modi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 106473W

Rajesh S Shah
Partner
Mumbai : 26th May, 2017 Membership number: 017844



GRIP POLYMERS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2017

As at As at
Note 31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Amount in ¥ Amount in T
Equity and Liabilities
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 2 5,030,000 5,00,000
Reserves and surplus 3 {1,06,27,627) 17,32,292
{1,01,27,627) 22,32,202
Minority Interest 6,548 -
Non-current Liabilities
Long term Borrowings 4 4,75,08,334 1,93,90,625
4,75,08,334 1,93,90,625
Current Liabilities
Short term borrowings 5 47,665,440 19,32,079
Trade payables g 54,75,340 33,83,222
Other current labilities 7 80,37,416 17,26,307
Short term provisions 8 - 6,947
1,82,78,196 70,48,555
Total Equity & Liabilities 5,56,65,451 2,86,71,472
Assets
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
-Tangibie assets 9 3,57,27,750 1,91,76,651
-Intangible assets 9 10,04,273 -
-Capital work-in-progress 9 42,654 21,347
Non current investments 14 85,000 85,000
Long tarm loans and advances 11 38,91,432 6,76,225
Other Non Current Assets 12 1,90,280 1,73,170
4,00,41,429 2,01,32,393
Current Assels
Inventories 13 90,13,668 45,59,851
Trade receivabies 14 27,65,015 5,44,105
Cash and Bank Balance 15 2754911 28,59,353
Short term loans and advances 16 1,950,398 3,465,271
Other current assets 17 - 2,29,500
1,47,24,022 85,39,079
Total Assets 5,56,65,451 2,86,71,472
_Significant Accounting policies and Notes on Financial Statements 1-32

The accompanying notes are an intagral part of the financial statements.
As per our Repart of even date

For A. B, Modi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Flrm Registration no. 106473W

Rajesh 5. Shah
Partner
Membership no. 017844

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29th May, 2017

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajendra V Gandhi
Chairperson

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29th May, 2017




GRIP POLYMERS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017

Year ended Yasr ended
Note 31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Amountin T Amountin ¥
Revenue :
Sale of products 18 5,43,76,979 3,28,41,353
QOther income 19 2,63,682 2,51,3593
Total revenue 5,46,40,661 3,30,92,746
Expenses:
Cost of Material consumed 20 4,47,64,697 3,06,14,545
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 21 32,08,321 (44,21,269)
Employee Benefits axpenses 22 47,49,754 19,57,673
Finance cost 23 40,27,746 16,65,484
Depraciation and amortization expense 24 40,75,109 17,98,318
Other expenses 25 72,209,246 20,71,738
Total expenses 6,80,54,873 3,3p,86,492
Profit before tax {1,34,14,212) {5,93,747]
Tax expense
Current tax 40,100 52,000
{Excass} / short provision of earlier years 4,08,059 {20,462)
Profit after tax {1,38,62,371) {6,25,285)
Minority Interest {2,452} -
Profit / {Loss} for the period {1,38,59,919} {6,25,285)
Earnings per equity share of face value of ¥ 10/- each fully paid up 27
(1) Basic {277.20) {12.51}
{2} Diluted {277.20} {12.51)
Significant Accounting policies and Notes on Financial Staternents 1-32
The accampanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
As per our Report of even daie
For A. B. Modi & Assaciates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartarad Accountants
ICA) Firm Registration na. 106473W
Rajendra V Gandhi

Rajesh S, Shah
Partner
Membership no. 017844

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29th May, 2017

Chairperson

Place ; Mumbai
Date : 29th May, 2017




GRIP POLYMERS LIMITED

CONSOQLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2017 Amount in¥
Year ended Year ended
A €Cash flow from Gperating activities

Net profit before tax and extra ordinary items (1,34,14,212) {5,93,747}
Adjustrments for

- Depraciation and Discarded 40,75,109 17,98,318

- Interest [Met) 38,32,070 10,22,321

- interest on taxes 5,735 -

- Preliminary expenses 4,184 -

- Dividend Income - {16,000)

79,17,158 28,04,639
Operating Profit before working capital changes {54,97,054) 22,10,892
Adjustments for

- [Increase)/Dacrease in Trade and other receivables {50,68,922} (8,19,759)

- [Increase)/Decreasa in Inventories {44,53,817) {45,59,851)

- Increase/{Decrease] in Trade payable 24,74,838 32,62,686

(70,47,851) {21,16,924)
Cash generated from operations {1,25,44,905) 93,968
Direct taxes paid {4,54,020) {49,263)
Net cash from operating activities {1,30,08,925) 44,705
B Cashfiow from investing activities

- Interest received 1,595,676 2,33,571

- Dividend Income - 16,000

- Fixed Deposits in Bank with Maturity period of more than 3 months 3,56,242 53,970

- Purchase of fixed assets {2,16,51,827) {1,77,27,159)
Net cash used in Investing activities (2,10,99,909) {1,74,23,618})

£ Cash flow fram financing activities

- Loans berrowed {Net of repayment) 3,43,13,037 1,72,02,071

- Stata Government Subsidy received 15,00,000 -

- Capital introduced by additional partner in LLP 9,000 -

- Interest paid {14,61,373) [1,25,590)
Net cash used in financing activities 3,43,50,664 1,70,76,48L
Net increase / {Decreasa) in cash and cash eguivalents 2,51,830 {3,02,433)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,37,610 5,40,043
Cash and cash equivalents at the closing of the period 4,859,440 237,610

€ash and cash equivalents ineludes:
- Cash & Bank Balance 27,54,941 28,59,353
Less: Deposit with Maturity period of more than 3 months {22,65,501) {26,21,743)
4,89,440 2,37,610

Notes:
{i! Figures in brackets are outflows.

il The above Cash Flow Staternent has heen prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Accounting Standard-3 on Cash Flow. Statement,

prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013,

i} Previous year's figures have been re-grouped wheraver necessary to conform to current yaar's classification.

The accempanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our Report of aven date

For A. B. Modi & Associates
Chartzred Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration ng. 106473W

Rajash S, Shah
Partner
Membership no. 017344

Place : Mumbai
Date ; 29th May, 2017

For and on behaif of the Board of Directars

Rajendra\/ Gandhi
Chatrpersan

Place : Murnbai
Date : 29th May, 2017




GRIP POLYMERS LIMITED

CONSOUDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2017 Amountin ¥

1

1_Basls of Consclidation

{4) The consolidated financial statements present the consolidated accounts of GRIP Polymers Limited with its following Subsidiary LLF [previously Jointly

controlled enlity)
Entity considered in the consolidated financial statements is :

Mame of the Entity Proportion of Ownership Interest
Fy 2016-17 FY 2015-15
Gripsurya Recycling LLP 99.97% 50.00%

{B} Principies of consolidation :
The finanrial statements of the parent company and its subsidlary LLP (previous yzar jointly controlled entity} have been consolidated on 3 line - by - iine

basis (previous year proporticnate consolidation method} by adding together, the book valuas of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses,
after fully efiminating intra-group balances, intra-group transactions and the unrealised profits,

I Significant Accounting Policies:

{A) Basis of aceounting !
The financial ststements are prepared In accerdance with Indian Gene rafly Accepted Accounting Principles [GAAP) under the historical cost convention on

the accrual basis. GAAP comprises mandatory Accounting Standards as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {"Act"} read with Rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Ruies, 2014 and the provisions of the Act {to the extent netified). Accounting policies have been consistently applied by the
company and are congstent with thosa used in the previous year except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an
extsting accounting standard required a change in the accounting policy hither to in use,

{B) Accounting Estimates :
The preparation of financial statements in conforrmity with the generally accapted accounting principles {GAAP) requires management ta make astimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent labilities an the date of the financial
statements. Actual rasuits could differ from those estimates. Any difference between the actual result and estimates are recognised In the period In which
the results are known / materialised. Any revision te accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods,

(¢} Fixed Assets ;
i} Tamgible fixed assats
Fixed Assets are stated at historical Cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment fosses.
ilp Intangible fixed assets
Intangilife Asset acquired separately is measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognitian, intangible asset is carried at cost less

accumulated amortisation and accumuiated impalrmant losses if any.
lii} Depreciation
The subsidiary entity accounts depraciation on fized assets on written down vaiue mathod using the rates specified under the Ineome Tax Act, 1861

(D) Impairment of Assets
An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment loss is changed to the Profit and Loss Account

in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in
the estimate of regoverable amount,

{E} Investments :
Investments, which are readily realizable and Intended to be held for not more than one year from the date oh which such investments are made, are
classified as current investments, All other investments are classified as long-term investments.
Long term investments are carried at cost. However prowision for diminution is made to recognise a decline, other than temporary, in the valug of the
investments, such reduction being determined and made for each investment individually. Current Investments are valued at cost or market value
whichevar is lawer.

{F) Tanes:
Provision for tax is made for both current and deferced taxes. Provisions for current income tax is made at current tax rates based on assessabla income,
The Company provides for defarred tax based on the tax effect of timing differance resulting from the recagnition of items in the financial statement and
in estimating it's current tax provision. Deferred tax assets are recognised if there is @ reasonabie certainty of reatisation. The effect on deferred taxes of 2
change in tax rates is recognised in the Profit & Loss Account in the period in which it has been enacted.

{G) Inventories :
Raw materials, work In progress and finished goods are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Work-in-progress is carried at lower of cost

and net raalizable valve, Finished goods produced by the company are carried at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct material and
labour cost and 2 proportion of manufacturing overheads,

(H) Income Recognition :
ti} Durmestic Sales are recognized on dispatch of goods from factory on trapsfer of significant risk & rewards of ownership of such goods. Sajes are disclosed
net of sales tax / Value added tax, discounts and sales return as applicable.
{i} Interest Income is recognised on a time propertion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.
{ili} Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established,

{l} Employees Benefits :
Long Term Employee Bepefits
Defined Contribution Plans ; Provident Fund

The LLP makes contribution to statutory provident fund in accordance with the Employees Provident Fund & Miscedlaneous Provistans Act, 1952, which Is
a defined cantributian plan and contribution pald or payabie is recognized as an expense in the period in which servicas are rendered by the employea.

Shart Term Employee Benefits ;

All employee benefits payable whelly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits. Expense in respect of
other short term benefits is recognized on the basis of the amount paid or payabla for the period during which services are rendered by the employee.




GRIP POLYMERS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2017 Amountin ¥

{)) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Prowisions involved substantisl degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is

probabie that there will be an outflow of rescurces. Contingent Liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are neither
recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

(k) Earning per Share
The company reports basic and diluted eaming per shara (EPS) in accardance with the Accounting Standard specified under Section 133 of the Companies

aAct read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts} Rules, 2014, The Basic EPS has been computed by dividing the income available to equity shareholders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the accounting year. The diluted EPS has been computed using the weighted
average nurmber of equity shares and dilutive potential aguity shares outstanding during the end of the year.

{t) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with an ariginal

maturity of three months or less,

As at Asat

Share Capltal:

31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Authorized:
50,000 {March 31, 2016: 50,000 equity shares of T 10 each 5,000,000 5,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
50,000 {March 31, 2016: 50,000) equity shares of T 10 each fuily paid-up 5,030,000 5,00,000
Total Shave Capital 5,00,000 5,00,000

{a} Rights, prefarences and restrictions attached to shares
The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10/- Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per

share.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the heolders of the equity shares of the Company will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Campany,

after distribution of all preferentlal amounts in proportion to their sharehoiding.

{b] The recanciilation of the number of shares outstanding and the ameunt of share capital as at March 31, 2057 and March 31, 20186, is sat cut below
Equity Shares:

As at Asat
31-03-2017 31-03-2016
At the beginning
Number of shares 50,000 S0,000
- Amount 5,000,000 5,000,000
Arthe and
Mumber of shares 50,000 S0,000
- Amount 5,00,000 5,00,000
(c} Betails of shares hald by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the company
As at 31-03-2017 As at 31-03-2016
Holding company Me. of Shares % of Holding Ma. of Shares % of Holding
GRP Limited 50,000 100.00% 50,000 100.00%
Reservas and Surplus: As at As at
31-03-2047 31-03-2016
Special capital incentive and subsidy
Balance as por last Balance sheat 15,00,000
General Reserve
Balance as per last Balance sheet 241711 841,711
Surplus in Statement of Frofit & Loss
Balance as at beginning of the year £,90,581 15,15,866
Profit / {Loss) for the year {1,38,59,919) [6,25,285)
Balance as at end of the yaar {1,29,69,338) 290,581
Total rasarves and surplus (1,06,27,627) 17,32,292
Long Term Borrow/ngs: As at As at
31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Secured Loan
Rupee Term Loans from Banks 67,038,334 -
Share in Rupee Term Loans in jointly controlled antity - 53,90,625
Unsecured lLoan
From GRP Ltd. {Holding Cormpany]) 4,08,00,000 1,40,00,000
Total Long Yerm Sorrawings 4,75,08,334 1,93,90,625

Rupee Term Yoan from HOFC Bank Ltd of T 1,05,41,657 {March 31, 2016 : T 57,50,004) for Capex
First exclusive charge by way of martgage of immovable properties (Including land & buitding) and hypothecation of all movable fixed assets {including plant

2 machinery) and current assets of the jointly controiled entity located at Fithampur, Dist. Dhar, Madhya Pradesh factory.

The unsecured loan carry interest at the rate of 10% p.a. The terms of loan is for 3 years fram the date of disburserment.

Financial Year Amaount
FY 2018-19 94,08,000
FY 2018-20 2,68,00,000

FY 2020-21 45,92,000




GRIP POLYMERS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2017

AnountinT
S Short Term Borrowings: Rsat As at
31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Segcured Loan
‘Warking Capltal Rupze Lean payable on demand from banks 47 65,440 -
Share in Warklng Capital Rupes Loan in Jointly xontralled entity - 19,322,079
Total Shart-term bomrewings 47,65,440 19,32,079

Working Capital Loan from HOEC Bank Ltd of ¥ 47,655,441 (Masch 31, 2016 : ¥ 19,32,079)
First exciusive charge by way of hypothecation of entire current assets, both present and Future, incuding inventories, book debts, bills receivables and entire movable fixed assets and mortgage of

immovable fixed assets of the LLP.

6 Trade Fayables: Asat Asat
31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Trade payables 54,753,240 16712
$hare in Trade payables In [ointly controllad entity - 33,686,509
Total tracde payables 54,75,330 33,83,222
¢ Other Current Liabillties: Asat As at
31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Current maturities of Long-tarm Rupee Tertn Loan {refer note 4) 38,33333 -
Stalutory dues 4,17,674 34,904
Interest Acoruad 37,836,409 12,20,036
Share in Other current lizbiities in joindy contralled entity - 4,771,367
Total ather current liabillties 80,317,416 17,26,307
As at As at
8 short Term pravisions: 21.03-2017 21.03.2016
Provlsion for Taxations [Net of advance tax Rs 43,219/ {March 31, 2016 : Rs 1,17,066/-) - 5,247
Tatal short-term provizions - 6,947
8 Fixed Aszats:
Particulars Oxiginal Cost Depreciation & Amortisation Met Book Value
s 3t . Dispusal Asat A5zl Dispusal 5 3t As at As at
02:04-2016 Additions .m:llupslme:t 5032007 | oroazas | FOrtheperd hdjupstmait 31-03-2617 31.03-2017 31.03.2016
{a) Tangihie Assets
Own Asseds ;
Land 29,35,403 29,235,403 - 58,70,806 - - - - 58,70,806 29,35,402
Buillding 50,00,950 49.40,501 - 99,41,450 5,00,095 2,356,709 - 13,36,804 86,04,646 45,00,855
Plant & Machinery 1,29,63,194 1,14,33,676 (22, 764)| 2,43,74,106 12,76,710 30,88,967 (3,415} 43,62,262 2,00,11,834 1,16,36,454
Furniture & Fixtures - 10,38 962 - 10,28.962 - 75,283 - 75,283 9,53,679 B
Office equipments 46,113 1,81,588 - 2,272,707 3051 32,223 - 38,154 1,91 553 42,188
Computer Hardware 29,304 40,118 . 69,422 17,583 29,423 - 47,006 22417 11,722
Wehicles - 12,500 - 13 500 - 038 - 928 11,562 -
Material Handling Systems - 46,710 22,764 63,473 - 4,315 3415 8,230 1,243 -
| Total {a) !| 2,09,74,96% | 2.06,18,457 - 4,15,94,426 | 1792318 40,68,359 - 58,606,676 3,57,27,750 1,91,76,651
b} intangible Assats
Owin Assets !
Gorodwill - 9,75,023 - 9,75,023 - - - - 9,75,023 -
Computer Software - 36,000 - 36,000 - 6,750 - 6,750 23,250 -
Total (b} : - 10,11,023 - 10.11,023 - 5,750 - £,754) 10,04,273 -
Total fa + b}i| 2,09,74,96% | 2,16,30,480 - 4,26,05,449 17,558,313 40,75,109 - 58,73,426 3,67,32,023 1,91,76,651
Pravious Yaar: 29,35,403 1,20,39,586 - 2,09,74,969 - 17,9812 - 17,058,313 1,91,76,651 29,35,403
Capital Work-fa-progress
wiF 42,694 -
Share it Capital WIP in jaintly controllad entity - 21,347
Total {c} : 4,554 21,347
Total fixed assets fnet) 3,67,74,717 1,91,97,932
Notes

1) Opening Palance & additions during the year to fixed assets include proportionate share of gach assets In Joint venture tll the date of Jointly controlled entity.
3 Goodwill arises upan the acnuisition of jointly controllad intarest of the JV Parimer of LLP. Goodwill reprasents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group's interast

{n the net fair value of the dentifiable assets and fiakifities.

10 Non-current Invastrnents: As at As at
31-03-2017 31-03-2016
a) Lorg Term-Mon Trade Investmant
Investment in Equity Share (Quoted)
5,000 equity shares of ¥ 2 /. sach ully paid up held in Bank of Baroda
[Market Value T 564,750/ (March 31, 2016 : T 7.35,.500/-)) 85,000 5,000
Total non-current investment 55,000 85,000
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Amountin ¥

Asat Asat
11 Long-term Loans and Advantes: 31.03-2017 31-03-2016
Other Advances & Deposits 38,91,432 -
Share in Cther Advances & Deposits in jointly controdled entity - B,76,225%
Total long-term loans and adwances 38,991,432 5,76,125
12 Other Non urrent Assets: Asat As at
31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Others
In Fixed Deposit accounts with Bank [Maturity more than 12 months) 1,56,809 1,54,341
Prefiminary Expenses 33,471 -
Share in Preliminary expenses in jointly controlled entity - 18,829
Tatal Non Current Assets 1,90,280 1,73,170
Notes:
Fixed Deposit with Bank include deposit of T 28,586/~ (March 31, 2016 : ¥ 26,719/-) lien with the Maharashtra Yalue Added Tax Department.,
13 Inventories: As at As at
31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Raw Matarial 78,00,720 -
Finished Goods 12,172,948 -
Share In Inventories in jointly controlled entity - 45,59,851
Total Inventorias 90,13,668 45,59,851
As at As at
14 Trade Receivablas: 31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Unsecured, consldered goad
Outstanding less than six months 27,65,015 -
Shara in Trade Receivahles in Jointiy controlled entity - 5,44,105
Total trade receivables 27,865,015 5,44,105
15 <ash and Bank Balances: As at As st
31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balance with banks
- In current accounts 3,53,731 117,137
In Fixed Deposit accounts (Maturlty less than 3 Months] - -
Cash In hand 1,35,709 5,089
4,89,440 1,22,216
Other Bank Balances
- In Fixed Deposit aceounts (Maturity more than 3 Months but jess than 12 manths) 22,65,50L 26,21,743
27,54,941 27,43,959
Share in Cash & Bank balancas in jointly controlled entity - 1,15,394
Total Cash and Bank Balance 27,54,941 258,59,353

Disglosure on Specified Bank Notes {SBNs)

As required by the MCA vide notification ne. GSR J08{E} dated 30th March, 2017, the detalls of Specified Bank Notes (SBNs) and other denomination notes held & transacted

during the geriod from Sth November, 2016 to 30th December, 2016 is given below.

Spetified Othar
Bank dencmination Tatal
Notes {SBN) notes
Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 3,34,000 1,62,463 495,463
{+] Parmitted receipts - 3,85,100 385,200
(-} Permitted payments - 4,31,708 4,31,708
{-} Amount deposited in Banks 3,34,000 - 3,34,000
Clasing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016 - 1,15,955 1,135,955
As at As at
16 Short Term Loans and Advances: 31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind 83,745 49,471
Cutrrent maturity of Prepaid Expenses 1,04,534 -
Advance Income-tax (Net of provisions T 40,100/ : March 31, 2016 : T 1,39,000/-} 3,119 -
Share In Short Term Loans & Advances in jaintly cantrolled antity - 2,96,800
Total short-term loans @nd advances 1,90,393 3,46,271
As at As at
37 Other Current Assets: 31-03-2017 31.03-2016
Share in Other Current Assets in jointly contsolled entity - 2,228,500
Total Other Current Assets - 2,29,500
18 Rayanue: Year ended Year ended
31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Sale of products 5,432,76,979 -
Share in Revenue in jointly controited entity - 3,28,41,353
Total revenue 543,756,979 3,28,41,353




GRIP POLYMERS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017 Amount In T
19 Other income: Year ended Year ended
31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Interest received 1,95,676 %,33,571
Dividend Income - 16,000
Other Incoma &8,006 -
Share it Other Income in jointly controllad antity - 1,822
Total other income 2,63,682 2,51,393
Year ended ¥ear ended
20 Cost of Material consumed: 31032017 31.03.2016
Raw material consumed:
Opening inventories 1,538,532 -
Add : Purchases {including incidental expenses of T 15,032,488, March 31, 2015 : ¥ 3,99,289) 5,24,26,835 -
5,25,65,417 -
Lass : Closing inventeries 78,00,720 -
Share in Raw material Consumed in jointly controlled entlty - 3,06,14 549
Total cost of material consumed 4,47 ,64,697 3,06,14,549
21 Changes In inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade ::i;;:zig :f;:_gi:g
Stack at the end of the year:
Finishad goads 12,12,948
Tatal {A) 12,12,948
Stack at the beginning of the year:
Finished gouds 44,21,269 -
Total (B} 44,31 269 -
Share in Changes in inventory in jointly ¢ontrolled entity - 44.21,269
Increase f [Decreasa) in Stock {32,08,321) 44,21,269
Year ended Year ended
22 tmployes Benefits expenses: 31032017 31-03-2016
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 47,82,192 -
Contribution to Provident fund and Pension fund 2,536,581 -
Contribution te other funds 1,71,766 -
Welfare and other benafits 38,815 -
share in Employee Benefits expenses in jointly controlled entity - 19,57,673
Total employee benefits axpanses 47,4%8,754 19.57.673
23 Finance cost: Year ended Year ended
31-03-2017 31-03-2016
interest on Term & Working Capital Leans 11,76,220 -
interest on Other Loans 28,51,526 12,55,892
Share in Finance cost in jointly controlled antity - 4,09,592
Total finapce cost 40,27,748 16,65,484
i R X Year ended Year ended
24 Degreciation and Amertization expenses: 31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Depreciation on Tangible Assets 40,75,109 -
share in Depreciation & Amorlization expenses in jointly controlted entity - 17,98,318
Total depreciation and amortization expanses 4n,75,109 17,938,318
25 Other expenses: Year ended Year ended
31-03-2017 31-03.2016
Manufacturing Expenises
Power, Fuel & Water Cansumed:-
- Power Consumption 32,40,820 -
- Water Consumption 87,114 -
Repairs & Maintenance Expenses:-
- Plant & Machineries $,45,071 -
Salas & Distribution expensos
Other elling and Gistributfon expenses 66,304 -
Administration & Other Expenses
insyrance 57,701
Vehicle Expensss 5,447,756 -
Printing & Stationery 37,773 -
Rent, Lease Rent & Other Charges 3,06,033 -
Retainer Fees, Lepal fees & Prof charges 3,58,005 -
Bank Charges 35,391 509
Travelling & Conveyance 1,75,709 -
Postape, Telegram & Telephones 1,023,347 23,764
Payment to Auditors:
- Audit fee 58,625 8,588
- Taxation matters 5,750 5,725

Factory / Office Expenses

291026




GRIP POLYMERS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017 Amaunt in T
Qther Expanses 10,31,461 25,871
Bad Dabis Written off 2,64,922 -
Interest on taxes 16,348 1,000
Share in Other Expenses in jointly controlled entity - 20,06,191
Total other expenses 72,29,246 20,71,738

26 Related parties disclosure;

{A) Names of the related parties :
{i} Parties whare control exists
Holding Company GRP Limited
{100% of total shareholdings held by the company]

i} Directors of the company :-
- Key Management Personnet Rajendra V. Gandhi, Chairperson
Mayna R. Gandhi , Director
Harsh R, Gandhi , Director

Year ended Year ended
31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Summary of transaetinns with related parties in the ordinary course of business
A} Loan Payable
GRP Limited 4,08,00,000 1,40,00,000
B) Loan received during the year
GRP Limited 2.,68,00,000 94,08,000
C} Interest Expenses
GRP Limited 28,51,526 12,55,892
27 Earnings per share: Year ended Year ended
31-03-2017 31-03-2016
- Met Profit after tax for the year {1,34,51,860) {645,747}
- Excess Provision for tax for eardier years 4,08,059 {20,461)
- Net Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders {1,38,59,919) {6,25,285)
- Number of equity shares of Rs.10/- each. 50,000 50,000
- Earnings per share - Basic {277.20) (12.51)
- Earpings per share -Diluted {277.20) (12.51)

28 The company acquired Tnterest of 1V partner of LLP a3 per MO dated 06-Jul-2016. The unaudited accounts for the period 01-Apr-2016 to 30-lun-2G16 of the LLP was prepared

& considered by the management.

29 In the opinion of the beard, the current assats, loan and advances are approximately of the vaiue stated, if realised, in the ordinary course of the business. The provision for all

known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the armount reasonably necessary.
3D Segment reporting as defined in Accourting Standard 17 is ot applicatle since there I oniy one business segment,
31 Provision for taxation is made as per narmal provisian for income-tax.

32 Figure of the previous year have been re-arranged or re-grouped wherewer necessary to make them comparatle with that of the current yaar,

The accormpanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our Repart of aven date

For A, B. Mudi & Assaclates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartared Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration no. 106473wW

Rajendra V Gandhi
Rajesh 5. Shah Chairperson
Partner
Membership na, 917844
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
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